

# Santiago Canyon College Academic Senate

8045 East Chapman  
Orange, CA 92869

(714) 628-4831  
FAX (714) 532-2055

## SENATORS

### **Business and Career Education**

Deeley, Steve, 2012  
Salcido, Andrew, 2013

### **Continuing Education (OEC)**

Shields, Jolene, 2013

### **Counseling & Student Services**

Aguilera, Lenor 2013  
Mettler, Mary 2012

### **Humanities and Social Sciences**

Deaver, Doug, 2012  
Elchlepp, Elizabeth, 2013  
Granitto, James, 2013  
Isbell, James, 2013  
Shekarabi, Nooshan, 2012

### **Fine & Performing Arts and Communication**

Womack, Melinda, 2013

### **Library**

Sproat, Barbara, 2013

### **Mathematics and Sciences**

Cummins, Shawn, 2013  
Hovanitz, Eric, 2012  
Martino, Danny, 2013  
Nance, Craig 2012  
Scott, Randy, 2013

### **Adjunct**

Matthews, Evangline, 2012

## OFFICERS

### **President**

Barembaum, Morrie, 2012

### **Vice President**

Evelt, Corinna, 2012

### **Secretary/Treasurer**

DeCarbo, Michael, 2012

### **Curriculum**

Rutan, Craig - Chair

## Resolution S2012.2

### Resolution in Support of the Revision to the Equivalency Forms

Moved: Michael DeCarbo  
Seconded: Craig Nance

Whereas, Education Code 87359 (b) gives power to the Academic Senate for Waiver of Minimum Qualifications and Equivalency;

Whereas, a collaborative effort between Santa Ana College, Santiago Canyon College and the District Office has produced a revision to the instruction and forms for equivalency;

Resolved, that the Santiago Canyon College Academic Senate supports the adoption and implementation of the equivalency forms.

Date Presented: 21 February 2012

Date Approved: 21 February 2012

***Santiago Canyon College is an innovative learning community dedicated to intellectual and personal growth. Our purpose is to foster student success and to help students achieve these core outcomes: to learn, act, communicate and think critically. We are committed to maintaining standards of excellence and providing an accessible, a transferable, and an engaging education to a diverse community. (Approved 4/12/2011)***

## RANCHO SANTIAGO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

### Request for Equivalencies to Minimum Qualifications

The Local Governing Board is authorized to employ those who meet the minimum qualifications through equivalency.

The Local Governing Board will rely primarily upon the advice and judgment of the Academic Senate(s) to determine equivalencies to minimum qualifications through a process of mutual agreement between the local Academic Senate(s) and the District.

A candidate for a faculty position cannot be hired if his/her qualifications are not equivalent to the minimum qualifications, **as stated in the discipline's list**, set by the State Chancellor's Office of the California Community Colleges in consultation with the Statewide Academic Senate. If a candidate believes that s/he meets the qualifications through equivalency, it is ~~incumbent upon~~ **the responsibility of** the candidate to indicate the basis for the equivalency and to provide the conclusive evidence for the equivalency through official transcripts from an accredited institution consistent with Title ~~V~~ **5** Regulations, publications, other work products, documentation of relevant work experience, or demonstration of mastery of a required skills as appropriate.

Prior to considering an individual candidate for an equivalency, the Department must first consider the specific equivalency criteria for the discipline (*Form I*). The discipline equivalency criteria must be reviewed and approved prior to the consideration of an individual requesting an equivalency. **The qualifications of an individual candidate will be reviewed and documented (*Form II*) to determine if the candidate has met the minimum qualifications through equivalency already established by the Department in Form I.**

#### **Please note:**

The equivalency in academic disciplines that have a minimum qualification of a Master's Degree or other required degrees and/or coursework should include equivalent academic preparation. Work experience, publications, or mastery of skill can not substitute for required academic coursework in these academic disciplines unless conclusive evidence is provided that delineates the components of the Master's Degree or any other required degree and that demonstrates how the work experience, publications, or mastery of skill satisfy each requirement of that degree.

In addition, a department cannot create an equivalency for a specific course within a discipline. The equivalency must be based upon the entire discipline and cannot be course specific.

Also, discipline equivalencies apply across the District and are not college specific. It is expected that a department will consult with the corresponding department at the ~~other~~ **sister** college and include the department chair at the ~~other~~ **sister** college in this process.

If a department wants to alter its approved equivalencies (*Form I*), the department must reconsider and file a new "Request for Equivalencies to Minimum Qualifications" ~~Form~~ (*Form I*). This will invalidate the prior Form I that was previously submitted by the Department and the new Form I will become the approved guideline for future considerations.

## **Instructions for Form I:**

To assist the Academic Senate(s) and the local Governing Board in making valid decisions regarding employment of those who meet minimum qualifications through equivalency:

- A. The Department makes a request to the Academic Senate to convene a Department Equivalency Committee.
  1. The Equivalency Committee will be selected by the Department, **in conjunction with the academic senate**, and will include the following:
    - Academic Senate Representative **appointed by the senate president**
    - Department Chair or designee from both colleges or academic areas
    - Three faculty members from the department, faculty service area, discipline, or division ~~respectively~~. **It is recommended that discipline faculty from both colleges be included.**
  2. The Equivalency Committee may request an administrator to serve as a **nonvoting** resource person for the committee.
  
- B. The Equivalency Committee will:
  1. List the current minimum qualifications for the discipline (*Form I, Item 1*) **Please refer to the latest version of the ASCCC Disciplines List.**  
[http://asccc.org/sites/default/files/Minimum\\_Qualifications\\_2010.pdf](http://asccc.org/sites/default/files/Minimum_Qualifications_2010.pdf)
  2. List the equivalencies for the discipline that the department accepts as valid (*Form I, Item 2*).
  3. Below is a list of criteria that some departments have considered in determining valid equivalencies to meet minimum qualifications. This list is being provided to assist the department in deciding appropriate equivalencies and is not intended to be an inclusive list.
    1. University units in a discipline from an accredited institution
    2. Teaching Credentials
    3. Licensure
    4. Alternate degrees
    5. Years of Related Experience (*if applicable*)
    6. Mastery of Skill
    7. Continuing Education Units (*e.g. nursing*)
    8. Portfolio

### **Please note:**

Equivalencies for disciplines that have a required Master's Degree or another required degree and/or coursework as a minimum qualification should include equivalent academic coursework. Work experience, publications, mastery of skill, etc. cannot substitute for equivalent academic preparation unless

conclusive evidence is provided that delineates the components of the Master's Degree or any other required degree and that demonstrates how the work experience, publications or mastery of skill satisfy each requirement.

Equivalencies are discipline specific and **NOT** course specific. An instructor granted an equivalency within a discipline meets the requirements to teach any course within that discipline district-wide.

4. Include a rationale to assist the President of the Academic Senate and the local Governing Board representative (the appropriate College President or designee) in their review and approval process (*Form I, Item 3*).

C. Process for Submission:

1. Write in the department submitting the request.
  2. Obtain the signature of the Department Chair or designee from each college. If there is no corresponding program at the other college, then one chair signature is sufficient. A signature indicates support for the equivalency and agreement that the proposed qualifications are equivalent to the minimum qualifications of the discipline.
  3. Obtain the signatures of the faculty from the Department, FSA Discipline or Division. A signature indicates support for the equivalency and agreement that the proposed qualifications are equivalent to the minimum qualifications of the discipline.
  4. Obtain the signature of the appropriate Dean/Supervisor. This signature indicates that the dean has been informed of the department's support of the equivalency request and the dean's receipt of the request.
- D. If supported and signed by the Academic Senate representative on the committee, the Chair of the Equivalency Committee will forward the request to the Academic Senate President for approval.
- E. If denied by the Academic Senate President, the request will be returned to the Department listing reasons for denial.
- F. If approved by the Academic Senate President, the equivalency request will be forwarded to the College President or designee for review and then forwarded to Human Resources. The document will be posted on the Intranet by Human Resources.

**RANCHO SANTIAGO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT**

Request for Specific Equivalencies to Minimum Qualifications for a Discipline/Program

**FORM I**

Each time a department wants to alter its agreed upon equivalencies for all discipline hirings, it must file a new "Request for Equivalencies to Minimum Qualifications" form.

**Name of the Discipline:** \_\_\_\_\_

1) List the current Minimum Qualifications for the discipline:

---

---

---

---

2) List the equivalencies that the Department accepts as valid:

---

---

---

---

3) Rationale: \_\_\_\_\_

---

---

---

---

**Submitted by:**

Department: \_\_\_\_\_

## Required Signatures

SAC Department Chair or designee: \_\_\_\_\_ Date: \_\_\_\_\_

A signature indicates support for the equivalency and agreement that the proposed qualifications are equivalent to the minimum qualifications of the discipline.

SCC Department Chair or designee: \_\_\_\_\_ Date: \_\_\_\_\_

A signature indicates support for the equivalency and agreement that the proposed qualifications are equivalent to the minimum qualifications of the discipline.

### Three faculty from the Department, FSA, Discipline or Division:

A signature indicates support for the equivalency and agreement that the proposed qualifications are equivalent to the minimum qualifications of the discipline.

1) \_\_\_\_\_ Date: \_\_\_\_\_  
Last (*print*) First (*print*) Signature

2) \_\_\_\_\_ Date: \_\_\_\_\_  
Last (*print*) First (*print*) Signature

3) \_\_\_\_\_ Date: \_\_\_\_\_  
Last (*print*) First (*print*) Signature

Academic Senate Representative \_\_\_\_\_ Date: \_\_\_\_\_

A signature indicates support for the equivalency and agreement that the proposed qualifications are equivalent to the minimum qualifications of the discipline.

Appropriate Dean/Supervisor: \_\_\_\_\_ Date: \_\_\_\_\_

Signature indicates receipt of equivalency request.

SAC Academic Senate President: \_\_\_\_\_ **APPROVED / DENIED** Date: \_\_\_\_\_

SCC Academic Senate President: \_\_\_\_\_ **APPROVED / DENIED** Date: \_\_\_\_\_

Reason for Denial: \_\_\_\_\_

College President or Designee: \_\_\_\_\_ Date: \_\_\_\_\_

If not approved at any level, the form will be returned to the appropriate Department Equivalency Committee.

## **Instructions for Form II:**

To assist the Academic Senate(s) and the local Governing Board in making valid decisions regarding the employment of an individual who meets the minimum qualifications through equivalency:

- A. The Department convenes an Equivalency Committee.
1. The Equivalency Committee will be selected by the Department, **in conjunction with the academic senate**, and will include the following:
    - Academic Senate Representative **appointed by the senate president**
    - Department Chair or designee
    - Three faculty from the department, faculty service area, discipline, or division, ~~respectively~~. **If there is a corresponding program at the sister college, discipline faculty from both colleges must be invited to participate.**
- Please note:
- **Equivalencies are district-wide and not college-specific. An instructor granted an equivalency within a discipline meets the requirements to teach any course within that discipline at either college.**
  - **That instructor is eligible for a full-time tenure track position within that discipline at either college.**
  - **A tenured faculty member who is granted an equivalency gains seniority in that discipline dating back to their original hiring date.**
2. The Equivalency Committee may request an administrator to serve as a **nonvoting** resource person to the committee.

- B. The Equivalency Committee will consider each applicant by completing Form II as follows:
1. Indicate name of applicant who is being considered for an equivalency.
  2. Indicate the discipline under consideration for equivalency.
  3. **The Equivalency Committee will review current Form I on file with HR and document evidence of equivalency in Items A through F on Form II, as appropriate. Include a copy of current Form I with equivalency request.**
  4. **Obtain the signature of the Department Chair or designee. A signature indicates support for the equivalency and agreement that the individual meets the requirements listed on Form I for the discipline.**
  5. **Obtain the signatures of the faculty from the Department, FSA Discipline or Division. A signature indicates support for the equivalency and agreement that the individual meets the requirements listed on Form I for the discipline.**
  6. **Obtain the signature of the appropriate Dean/Supervisor. This signature indicates that the dean has been informed of the department's support of the equivalency request and the dean's receipt of the request.**

7. Attach both Form I and transcripts or other appropriate supporting documents to Form II. This entire equivalency packet will then be forwarded to the Academic Senate President for review and approval.
8. If denied by the Academic Senate President, the request will be returned to the Department listing reasons for denial.
9. If approved by the Academic Senate President, the equivalency request will be forwarded to the College President or designee for review and then forwarded to Human Resources. If the equivalency is done for a full-time screening committee, the equivalency packet is returned to the screening committee once approved by the senate president.

**Please note:**

Equivalencies for disciplines that have a required Master's Degree or another required degree and/or coursework as a minimum qualification should include equivalent academic coursework. Work experience, publications, mastery of skill, etc. cannot substitute for equivalent academic preparation unless conclusive evidence is provided that delineates the components of the Master's Degree or any other required degree and that demonstrates how the work experience, publications, or mastery of skill satisfy each requirement of that degree.



**RANCHO SANTIAGO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT**

Request for evaluation of Applicants who meet Minimum Qualifications through Equivalencies for Hiring/FSA Determination

**FORM II**

When a Department Equivalency Committee is reviewing applications, the following criteria will be used to determine if an individual meets the minimum qualifications through equivalencies

**Name of applicant:** \_\_\_\_\_

**Discipline:** \_\_\_\_\_

Candidates meeting the requirements through the equivalency process must provide conclusive evidence of equivalency using one or more of the following as appropriate below:

- A. \_\_\_ Transcripts showing that the appropriate courses were successfully completed at an accredited college consistent with Title V Regulations or comparable foreign institution. **\*(Indicate college source and attach transcripts)**

\_\_\_\_\_  
\_\_\_\_\_  
\_\_\_\_\_

*\*Required for disciplines that have a Master's Degree or another required degree and/or coursework as a minimum qualification.*

- B. \_\_\_ Publications that show a command of the major in question, the general education of the candidate, or his/her writing skills.

\_\_\_\_\_  
\_\_\_\_\_  
\_\_\_\_\_

- C. \_\_\_ Other work products that show a command of the discipline in question, the general education of the candidate or his/her writing skills.

\_\_\_\_\_  
\_\_\_\_\_  
\_\_\_\_\_

- D. \_\_\_ Demonstration of Mastery of the required skill.

\_\_\_\_\_  
\_\_\_\_\_  
\_\_\_\_\_

- E. \_\_\_ Work Experience

\_\_\_\_\_  
\_\_\_\_\_  
\_\_\_\_\_

- F. \_\_\_ Other:

\_\_\_\_\_  
\_\_\_\_\_

Please note: The equivalency in disciplines that have a minimum qualification of a Master's degree or another required degree and/or coursework **must include equivalent academic preparation**. Work experience, publications or mastery of skill can **not** substitute for academic coursework in these academic disciplines.

## Required Signatures

Department Chair or designee: \_\_\_\_\_ Date: \_\_\_\_\_  
A signature indicates support for the equivalency and agreement that the individual meets the requirements listed on Form I for the discipline.

Three faculty from the Department, FSA, Discipline or Division:  
A signature indicates support for the equivalency and agreement that the individual meets the requirements listed on Form I for the discipline.

1) \_\_\_\_\_ Date: \_\_\_\_\_  
Last (*print*) First (*print*) Signature

2) \_\_\_\_\_ Date: \_\_\_\_\_  
Last (*print*) First (*print*) Signature

3) \_\_\_\_\_ Date: \_\_\_\_\_  
Last (*print*) First (*print*) Signature

Academic Senate Representative \_\_\_\_\_ Date: \_\_\_\_\_  
A signature indicates support for the equivalency and agreement that the individual meets the requirements listed on Form I for the discipline.

Appropriate Dean/Supervisor: \_\_\_\_\_ Date: \_\_\_\_\_  
Signature indicates receipt of equivalency request.

SAC/SCC Academic Senate President: \_\_\_\_\_ **APPROVED / DENIED** Date: \_\_\_\_\_

Reason for Denial: \_\_\_\_\_  
\_\_\_\_\_  
\_\_\_\_\_

College President or Designee: \_\_\_\_\_ Date: \_\_\_\_\_

If not approved at any level, the form will be returned to the appropriate Department Equivalency Committee.